

ORDINANCE NO. _____

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE BY AMENDING CHAPTER 30.185 AND SECTION 30.295.020 TO REGULATE ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS IN THE NON-COASTAL ZONE OF THE CITY

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Chapter 30.185 of Title 30 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended to read as follows:

30.185.040 Accessory Dwelling Units

Accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units shall be located, developed, and occupied subject to the following provisions:

A. **Purpose.** The purpose of this section is to:

1. Expand opportunities in the City to create additional housing to suit the spectrum of individual lifestyles and space needs, allow more efficient use of existing housing stock and public infrastructure, and provide a range of housing opportunities.
2. Allow accessory dwelling units or junior accessory dwelling units as an accessory use to **single** a primary residential units, consistent with California Government Code Section 65852.2 or 65852.22, as applicable.
3. Promote accessory dwelling units or junior accessory dwelling units with high-quality designs that are compatible with the surrounding neighborhood, historic resources, and historic districts; preserve the City’s visual resources; promote long-term sustainability; and contribute to a desirable living environment.

B. **Definitions.** For the purposes of this section, the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings:

1. **Accessory Dwelling Unit.** An attached or a detached residential unit **which that** provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons **and is located on a lot with a proposed or existing primary residential unit.** It shall include permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation and be located on the same parcel **as that** the **single primary** residential unit is **or will be**

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

situated. The following categories of accessory dwelling units are subject to specific development standards:

- a. **Special Accessory Dwelling Unit.** These are specific types of smaller accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units with certain size, height, and setback standards described in subsection V. Development Standards for Special Accessory Dwelling Units. Special accessory dwelling units allow for more than one accessory dwelling unit on a lot.
- b. **Standard Accessory Dwelling Unit.** These are typically larger accessory dwelling units with size, height, and setback standards generally described in subsection G. Development Standards for Standard Accessory Dwelling Units. Standard accessory dwelling units do not allow for more than one accessory dwelling unit on a lot.

An accessory dwelling unit also includes the following:

- a. An efficiency unit, as defined in Section 17958.1 of the Health and Safety Code.
 - b. A manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the Health and Safety Code.
2. **Efficiency Kitchen.** A kitchen that includes at a minimum:
 - a. Appliances for cooking food and refrigeration, either built-in or countertop.
 - b. A sink for food preparation greater than 12 inches by 12 inches, excluding the sink located in the bathroom.
 - c. A food preparation counter.
 3. **Existing Floor Area.** A legally permitted building constructed on the site with a final inspection or certificate of occupancy as of the date of application submittal, that conforms to current zoning standards or is legal nonconforming as to current zoning standards.
 4. **Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit.** A unit that is no more than 500 square feet in size and contained entirely within the structure of an existing or proposed single residential unit. A junior accessory dwelling unit may include separate sanitation facilities or may share sanitation facilities with the existing or proposed single residential unit and includes an efficiency kitchen.
 5. **Passageway.** A pathway that is unobstructed clear to the sky and extends from a street to one entrance of the accessory dwelling unit.
 - ~~2.6.~~ **Primary Residential Unit.** The existing or proposed **single** residential unit on a lot on which an accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit is permitted. The primary residential unit shall comprise one of the residential housing types described in Section 30.295.020.A (i.e., single-unit residential, two-unit residential, multi-unit residential) or mixed-use development.

~~3.7.~~ ***Principal Place of Residence.*** The residence where a property owner actually lives for the greater part of time, or the place where the property owner remains when not called elsewhere for some special or temporary purpose and to which the property owner returns frequently and periodically, as from work or vacation. There may be only one “principal place of residence,” and where more than one residence is maintained or owned, the burden shall be on the property owner to show that the primary residential unit, or accessory dwelling unit, or junior accessory dwelling unit is ~~his or her~~ the property owner’s principal place of residence as evidenced by qualifying for the homeowner’s tax exemption, voter registration, vehicle registration, or similar methods that demonstrate owner-occupancy. If multiple persons own the property as tenants in common or some other form of common ownership, a person or persons representing at least 50% of the ownership interest in the property shall reside on the property and maintain the property as a his, her, or their principal place of residence. Any person or persons who qualify for the homeowner’s tax exemption under the California State Board of Equalization rules, may qualify as an owner occupant.

~~4. — ***Passageway.*** A pathway that is unobstructed clear to the sky and extends from a street to one entrance of the accessory dwelling unit.~~

~~5. — ***Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit.*** A unit that is no more than 500 square feet in size and contained entirely within the structure of an existing single residential unit. A junior accessory dwelling unit may include separate sanitation facilities, or may share sanitation facilities with the existing single residential unit.~~

~~**C. Located on a Lot Developed with a Single Residential Unit.**~~

~~An accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit shall only be permitted on a lot that is developed with one single residential unit or in conjunction with the construction of a single residential unit.~~

~~**D. Prohibited on a Lot Developed with Additional Residential Units.** An accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit shall be prohibited on a lot developed with more than one residential unit, including, but not limited to, an additional residential unit, approved under Section 30.185.050, Additional Residential Unit, or a caretaker unit, approved under Section 30.185.120, Caretaker Unit, or similar use, or on a lot developed, or proposed to be developed, with additional detached livable floor area greater than 500 square feet.~~

C. Where Permitted.

1. ***Accessory Dwelling Unit.*** An accessory dwelling unit may be permitted in any zone that allows residential use, located on a lot developed or proposed to be developed with one or more residential units, except as prohibited below.
2. ***Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit.*** A junior accessory dwelling unit may be permitted in any zone that allows residential use, and shall be located on a lot developed with an existing or proposed single residential unit.

3. *Prohibited Locations.* No standard accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted on a lot located within the Fire Hazard Area (Extreme Foothill and Foothill), or as may be subsequently retitled in the future as the “Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone,” as defined in the City’s Community Wildfire Protection Plan adopted by City Council.
 - a. *Exception for Special Accessory Dwelling Units.* Accessory dwelling units permitted in accordance with all the configuration, standards, and special procedures outlined in subsection V., Development Standards for Special Accessory Dwelling Units, may be permitted on any lot, including lots located within any Fire Hazard Area (Extreme Foothill and Foothill), or as may be subsequently retitled in the future as the “Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone,” as defined in the City’s Community Wildfire Protection Plan adopted by City Council, if the lot is zoned to allow for residential use and contains an existing or proposed primary residential unit.

H.D. Unit Configuration – ~~Accessory Dwelling Unit.~~

1. Only one accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted on a lot in addition to the primary residential unit in the configuration set forth in subsections D.2 and 3, below. However, multiple accessory units may be permitted in accordance with all the configuration, standards, and special procedures outlined in subsection V., Development Standards for Special Accessory Dwelling Units.
2. An accessory dwelling unit may be permitted in the following configurations:
 - a. Incorporated entirely within an existing or proposed single primary residential unit;
 - b. Incorporated entirely within an ~~or existing or proposed~~ accessory building, including garages, located on the same lot as the primary residential unit;
 - ~~bc.~~ Attached to or increasing the size of an existing single-primary residential unit or accessory building located on the same lot as the primary residential unit; or
 - ed. Detached from and located on the same lot as ~~an~~the existing or proposed single primary residential unit. An accessory dwelling unit that is attached to another detached accessory building, but not the primary residential unit, or is attached by a breezeway or porch, is considered detached.
3. A junior accessory dwelling unit must be incorporated entirely within the existing floor area of an existing or proposed single residential unit or attached garage.
- ~~2. —The accessory dwelling unit shall have exterior access that is independent from the primary residential unit.~~
- ~~3. —The accessory dwelling unit shall meet all of the standards for a residential unit, pursuant to Section 30.140.150, Residential Unit.~~

~~I. Configuration—Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit.~~

- ~~1. A junior accessory dwelling unit must be created within the existing livable floor area of an existing single residential unit, and must include one of the bedrooms of the existing single residential unit.~~
- ~~2. A separate exterior entry shall be provided to serve a junior accessory dwelling unit.~~
- ~~3. An interior connection between the primary residential unit and the junior accessory dwelling unit must be maintained, however a lockable door in the same location may be added for sound attenuation and privacy.~~
- ~~4. A junior accessory dwelling unit shall include an efficiency kitchen, which shall include all of the following components:
 - ~~a. A sink with a waste line not to exceed a diameter of one and one-half inches;~~
 - ~~b. A cooking facility with appliances which do not require electrical service greater than 120 volts, or natural or propane gas;~~
 - ~~c. A food preparation counter and Storage cabinets that are reasonable to the size of the junior accessory dwelling unit;~~~~

F.E. Sale, and Rental, and Occupancy Terms. All accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units shall be subject to the following sale, rental, and occupancy terms:

1. **Not to Be Sold Separately.** An accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit shall not be sold separately from the primary residential unit.
2. **Rental Terms.** The accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit may be rented, however rental terms shall not be less than 31 consecutive days, nor shall rental terms allow termination of the tenancy prior to the expiration of at least one 31-day period occupancy by the same tenant.

~~G. 3. **Owner Occupancy.** The following owner occupancy requirements shall apply to all junior accessory dwelling units and to any accessory dwelling unit permitted in an RS zone. The following types of projects are subject to an owner occupancy requirement:~~

- ~~a. All lots developed with junior accessory dwelling units;~~
 - ~~b. Any accessory dwelling unit located in an RS zone if an owner occupancy covenant was executed, submitted to the City, and recorded before January 1, 2020; and~~
 - ~~c. Any accessory dwelling unit located in an RS zone submitted on or after January 1, 2025, or upon repeal of Government Code 65852.2 (a)(6)(B) removing the State-imposed prohibition of an owner occupancy requirement, whichever occurs first.~~
 - ~~d. **Exceptions:** Owner occupancy shall not be required if the owner is another governmental agency, land trust, or housing organization.~~
24. **Owner's Unit.** If owner occupancy is required, the property owner shall reside in and maintain either the primary residential unit or the accessory dwelling

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

unit/junior accessory dwelling unit, as the property owner's principal place of residence ("owner's unit"). Owners of lots developed with an accessory dwelling unit/junior accessory dwelling unit shall live on the lot as long as the lot is developed with an accessory dwelling unit/junior accessory dwelling unit. Owners may re-designate the primary residential unit or the accessory dwelling unit/junior accessory dwelling unit as the owner's unit upon written notice to the Community Development Director and written approval of the re-designation by the Community Development Director, which approval shall not be denied unreasonably. The property owner shall not rent or lease both the primary residential unit and the accessory dwelling unit/junior accessory dwelling unit simultaneously.

25. ***Hardship Waiver.*** If owner occupancy is required, in the event of a hardship, such as the death or disability of the property owner, job transfer, or similar significant personal situation which prevents the property owner from occupying one of the units as ~~his or her primary residence~~ the owner's unit, a property owner or estate representative may apply for a temporary waiver of the owner-occupation requirement for a specific time period to allow the ~~primary residential unit or the accessory dwelling unit/junior accessory dwelling~~ owner's unit to be occupied by a non-property owner pending disposition of the property through probate or non-probate transfer to a new owner, or the cessation of the circumstances preventing ~~him or her~~ the property owner from occupying the ~~primary residential unit or the accessory dwelling unit/junior accessory dwelling~~ owner's unit on the property. The Community Development Director shall review applications for a hardship waiver. Any such waiver shall specify the period of time for which it is granted, provided that no such waiver may be granted for a period longer than three years.

F. Required Features. Each accessory dwelling unit and junior accessory dwelling unit shall contain, at a minimum, the following features:

1. ***Residential Elements.*** Permanent provisions for separate residential occupancy must be provided as follows within the contiguous livable floor space of the accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit and must be independent from the primary residential unit:
 - a. A kitchen, consisting of a sink, cooking appliance, and refrigeration facilities. A junior accessory dwelling unit may utilize an efficiency kitchen.
 - b. A bathroom consisting of a toilet, sink, and bathtub or shower. A junior accessory dwelling unit may share sanitation facilities with the existing or proposed single residential unit.
 - c. A separate living room.
 - d. A separate sleeping room, except in studio residential units, where a living room is considered a sleeping room.

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

2. **Minimum Floor Area.** Notwithstanding the dwelling unit minimum described in Section 30.140.150, Residential Unit, the minimum floor area for a newly constructed accessory dwelling unit is as follows:
 - a. **Efficiency Unit:** 150 square feet.
 - b. **Studio Unit:** 220 square feet.
 - c. **All Other Units:** 400 square feet.

Such usable floor area shall be exclusive of open porches, garages, basements, cellars and unfinished attics. The minimum floor area for accessory dwelling units that are created by converting existing structures is 150 square feet.

3. **Exterior Access.** Exterior access to the unit, that is independent from the primary residential unit, must be provided. An interior connection consisting of one fire-rated lockable door between the primary residential unit and an accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit may be provided.
4. **Fire Sprinklers.** Fire sprinklers are required only if they are required for the primary residential unit.
5. **Permanent Foundation.** Attached and detached units shall be constructed with an approved permanent foundation.
6. **Property Addresses.** Addresses identifying all residential units on the lot, with minimum three- and one-half-inch numbers plainly visible from the street or road fronting the property shall be provided.
7. **Public Sewer.** Accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units shall be connected to a public sewer. If public sewer connection is not available, approval of a new or expanded onsite wastewater treatment system shall be required in accordance with the procedures from the Code of the County of Santa Barbara California prior to issuance of a building permit.
8. **Water Meter.** Accessory dwelling units shall comply with the water metering requirements of Title 14, Section 14.08.150 E.
9. **Passageway.** No passageway is required in conjunction with the construction of an accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit.

~~E. **Number of Units.** Only one accessory dwelling unit or one junior accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted on a lot in addition to one single residential unit, not both.~~

J.G. Development Standards for Standard Accessory Dwelling Units.

1. **Development Standards Generally.** An accessory dwelling unit shall be deemed to be an accessory use or an accessory building. A junior accessory dwelling units shall be deemed to be an accessory use. Unless otherwise stated in this section, any lot developed with an accessory dwelling unit or a junior accessory dwelling unit

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

~~shall comply with the development standards applicable to an accessory use or accessory building, as applicable, for a single-unit residential housing type within the zone in which the lot is located. The development standards listed in this section apply to standard accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units, except for those units permitted in accordance with all the configuration, standards, and special procedures outlined in subsection V., Development Standards for Special Accessory Dwelling Units.~~

~~1. ***Exceptions Dependent upon Maintenance of the Accessory Dwelling Unit.***~~

- a. The reductions and exceptions to the development standards normally applicable to ~~single-unit~~ residential development allowed in this section are for the express purpose of promoting the development and maintenance of an accessory dwelling unit on the lot. If for any reason the accessory dwelling unit is not maintained on the lot in conformance with this section, the lot shall be brought into compliance with all of the requirements for ~~single-unit~~ the residential development, or with the legal nonconforming condition of the lot prior to the development of the accessory dwelling unit, including, but not limited to, the requirements for open yard, setbacks, and covered parking.
- b. Except as otherwise specified in this subsection, projects developed in accordance with this section shall otherwise comply with the development standards applicable to an attached or detached accessory building for the housing type and the base zone in which the lot is located.
- c. One primary residential unit shall be designated on a lot on which an accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit is permitted.
- d. Notwithstanding the size limit of an attached accessory dwelling unit based on a percentage of the proposed or existing primary unit, or lot coverage, floor area ratio, open yard, and minimum lot size standards for an attached or detached accessory dwelling unit, an 800-square-foot, 16-foot high attached or detached accessory dwelling unit may be constructed in compliance with all other development standards for Standard ADUs.

~~K.~~ ~~2.~~ **Maximum Floor Area.** The maximum floor area for a standard accessory dwelling unit and junior accessory dwelling unit is as follows:

~~1.~~ **Maximum Floor Area**

~~a.~~ **Attached Accessory Dwelling Unit.** An accessory dwelling unit that is attached to, and increasing the size of, the primary residential unit ~~The maximum floor area of an attached accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 50% of the living area of the existing primary residential unit, or 1,200 square feet, whichever is less.~~

~~b.~~ **Converted Accessory Dwelling Unit.** An accessory dwelling unit that is incorporated entirely within an existing primary residential unit, or within an existing accessory building, is not limited in size except that it shall not exceed the footprint of the existing structure.

~~2.~~ **Maximum Floor Area**

~~c.~~ **Detached Accessory Dwelling Unit.** An accessory dwelling unit that is detached from the primary residential unit and may or may not be attached to another detached accessory building, including detached garages ~~The maximum floor area of a detached accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed the following maximum floor area based on lot size and number of bedrooms:~~

~~a.~~ *Lots less than 5,000 square feet: 600 square feet.*

~~b.~~ *Lots 5,000 square feet up to 9,999 square feet: 800 square feet.*

~~c.~~ *Lots 10,000 up to 14,999 square feet: 1,000 square feet*

~~d.~~ *Lots 15,000 or larger: 1,200 square feet.*

~~i.~~ *Lots up to 14,999 square feet and developed with one-bedroom or studio units: 850 square feet.*

~~ii.~~ *Lots up to 14,999 square feet and developed with two or more-bedroom units: 1,000 square feet.*

~~ii.~~ *Lots 15,000 square feet or larger: 1,200 square feet.*

~~3.~~ **Maximum Floor Area**

~~d.~~ **Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit.** The maximum floor area of a junior accessory dwelling unit shall be 500 square feet.

~~4.~~ **Relation to Other Accessory Buildings.** ~~The floor area of a detached accessory dwelling unit shall be included in the maximum total floor area allowed per lot for attached or detached covered parking and other detached accessory buildings, pursuant to Section 30.140.020.J, Maximum Floor Area.~~

~~3.~~ **Building Separation.** The minimum separation between the primary residential unit and a detached accessory dwelling unit shall be five feet.

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

4. ***Open Yard.*** ~~No open yard areas are required for accessory dwelling units or junior accessory dwelling units. The required minimum area, dimensions, and location of the required open yard pursuant to Section 30.140.140.C, Open Yards, for the existing or proposed primary residential unit on lots developed with single-unit or two-unit residential pursuant to Section 30.140.140.C, Open Yards, may be reduced as follows in order to construct an standard accessory dwelling unit pursuant to this subsection, or to construct an accessory dwelling unit proposed over a new or reconstructed maximum 500 square foot garage, provided all other open yard requirements for single-unit residential development in Section 30.140.140.C, Open Yards, are met:~~

~~1-a.~~ ***Minimum Area.***

~~ai.~~ *Lots less than 6,000 square feet:* 500 square feet.

~~bii.~~ *Lots 6,000 up to 7,999 square feet:* 800 square feet.

~~ciii.~~ *Lots 8,000 square feet up to 9,999 square feet:* 1,000 square feet.

~~dii.~~ *Lots 10,000 square feet or greater:* 1,250 square feet.

~~2-b.~~ ***Minimum Dimensions.*** 15 feet long and 15 feet wide.

~~3c.~~ ***Location in Driveways and Turnarounds.*** Notwithstanding Section 30.140.140.E.6.a, Vehicle Areas, the required open yard may be located in driveways and turnarounds, but not parking areas, in order to allow the construction of a new accessory dwelling unit.

~~L.~~ ***Setbacks for Structures.*** ~~Except for the special rules stated in this subsection, the accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit shall comply with the setback standards applicable to residential structures within the zone in which the lot is located.~~

~~1.~~ ***Special Rule for Garage Conversions.*** ~~No setbacks shall be required for an existing, legally permitted, garage or other accessory building that is converted to an accessory dwelling unit.~~

~~2.~~ ***Special Rule for an Accessory Dwelling Unit Constructed Above a Garage.*** ~~When an accessory dwelling unit is constructed above a new or existing attached or detached garage, a setback of five feet from the interior lot lines shall be required for the accessory dwelling unit. The five-foot setback applies only to the upper story portions of the accessory dwelling unit. Ground floor additions to the building shall comply with the setback standards applicable to residential structures within the zone in which the lot is located.~~

5. ***Setbacks.*** The following setbacks shall apply to new and converted standard accessory dwelling units approved pursuant to this subsection:

a. ***New Construction.*** Newly constructed accessory dwelling units shall comply with the following setback standards:

i. ***Front Setback:*** Meet the minimum front setback for residential structures in the zone, unless further limited by subsection H.8., Front Yard Location, below.

ii. ***Interior Setback:*** Four feet.

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

- b. **Conversion.** No setback is required to convert the existing, legally permitted, floor area of a main or accessory building to an accessory dwelling unit. Improvements to existing nonconforming buildings, including conforming additions, are allowed pursuant to Chapter 30.165, Nonconforming Structures, Site Development, and Uses.
- c. **Substantial Redevelopment.** No setback is required when an existing main or accessory building is substantially redeveloped and converted to an accessory dwelling unit, provided that the new building is reconstructed in the same location and with the same dimensions and floor area as the existing building.
 - i. **Exception for Small Conforming Additions.** One small 150-square-foot conforming first floor addition may be permitted on a substantially redeveloped and converted nonconforming accessory building.
- d. **New Construction Combined with Replacement of a Nonconforming Garage.** The construction of an accessory dwelling unit may be combined with the demolition and replacement of a nonconforming detached garage if all of the following requirements are met:
 - i. The new garage is reconstructed in the same location and with the same dimensions as the existing garage; or
 - ii. The new garage is enlarged only as necessary to provide the same number of parking spaces and to meet the dimension requirements of the City of Santa Barbara Access & Parking Design Standards, but located no closer to the property line as the existing garage; and
 - iii. The accessory dwelling unit is constructed above the reconstructed garage; and
 - iv. The accessory dwelling unit and any additions to the garage shall conform with current setbacks; and
 - v. The new structure shall comply with all applicable height and building story limitations, and all other development standards are met.
- ~~3. e. **Setback Encroachments.** Setback encroachments allowed pursuant to Section 30.140.090, Encroachments into Setbacks and Open Yards, may be permitted for accessory dwelling units or junior accessory dwelling units.~~
- ~~M. **Nonconforming Structures.** Additions, substantial redevelopment, or demolition and replacement of existing nonconforming structures shall comply with Chapter 30.165, Nonconforming Structures, Site Development, and Uses.~~
 - ~~1. **Exception for Nonconforming Garages.** Notwithstanding the limitations on additions described in Section 30.165.050, Additions to Nonconforming Development, the construction of an accessory dwelling unit may be combined with the substantial redevelopment and replacement of a nonconforming~~

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

~~detached garage if the accessory dwelling unit is constructed above the reconstructed garage and all other development standards are met.~~

~~N. **No Passageway Required.** No passageway is required in conjunction with the construction of an accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit.~~

~~O. **Open Yard.** The required open yard pursuant to Section 30.140.140.C, Open Yards, may be reduced as follows in order to construct an accessory dwelling unit pursuant to this section, provided all other open yard requirements for single-unit residential development in Section 30.140.140.C, Open Yards, are met:~~

~~1. **Minimum Area.**~~

~~a. **Lots less than 6,000 square feet:** 500 square feet.~~

~~b. **Lots 6,000 up to 7,999 square feet:** 800 square feet.~~

~~c. **Lots 8,000 square feet up to 9,999 square feet:** 1,000 square feet.~~

~~d. **Lots 10,000 square feet or greater:** 1,250 square feet.~~

~~2. **Minimum Dimensions.** 15 feet long and 15 feet wide on lots developed with an accessory dwelling unit.~~

~~3. **Driveways and Turnarounds.** Notwithstanding Section 30.140.140.E.6.a, Vehicle Areas, the required open yard may be located in driveways and turnarounds, but not parking areas, in order to allow the construction of a new accessory dwelling unit.~~

~~P. **Permanent Foundation Required.** Attached and detached accessory dwelling units shall be constructed with an approved permanent foundation.~~

~~Q. **Property Address.** Property addresses identifying two residential units are on the lot, with minimum three and one-half inch numbers, plainly visible from the street or road fronting the property shall be provided.~~

~~R. **Parking.** Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 30.175, Parking Regulations, automobile parking for lots developed with accessory dwelling units or junior accessory dwelling units shall be provided as follows:~~

~~1. **Required Parking for the Primary Residential Unit.** Automobile parking for the primary residential unit shall be provided in compliance with Chapter 30.175, Parking Regulations, except as provided below.~~

~~2. **Required Parking for an Accessory Dwelling Unit or Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit.** No additional parking spaces are required for an accessory dwelling unit or for a junior accessory dwelling unit, unless as otherwise indicated in the Foothill High Fire Hazard Areas.~~

~~3. **Optional Parking Spaces.** If new parking spaces are proposed, but are not required, for either the primary residential unit or the accessory dwelling unit, those optional parking spaces shall comply with the development standards applicable to a single~~

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

~~residential unit within the zone in which the lot is located. Uncovered parking spaces may be located three feet from any interior lot line, provided a minimum of three feet in width of planting area is provided for the length of the paved parking area along the interior lot line.~~

~~S. **Utility Connection or Meter.** Provision of utility connection or meter shall comply with Title 14, Section 14.08.150.~~

FH. Architectural Review. ~~All The creation of an~~ accessory dwelling units or junior accessory dwelling units shall be subject to the following architectural design criteria as applicable to either new construction or exterior alterations, which shall be reviewed ministerially by the Community Development Director. For purposes of this section, portions of a building or site considered to be the accessory dwelling unit shall include all of the contiguous interior livable floor area of the accessory dwelling unit and any exterior alterations directly attached to, and integral to, the livable floor area of the accessory dwelling unit.

1. **Prohibition of Shiny Roofing and Siding.** New roofing and siding materials that are, shiny, mirror-like, or of a glossy metallic finish are prohibited.
2. **Roof Tile.** Where a new clay tile roof ~~for architecture based on Hispanic, Spanish and Mexican cultural influences~~ is proposed, the use of two-piece terra cotta (Mission “C-tile”) roof is required and clay “S-tile” is prohibited, unless necessary to match the S-tile roof materials of the existing Primary Residential Unit.
3. **Skylights.** New skylights shall have flat glass panels. “Bubble” or dome type skylights are not allowed.
4. **Glass Guardrails.** New glass guardrails are not allowed, unless necessary to match the glass guardrails of the existing primary residential unit.
5. **Garage Conversion.** If a garage is converted to an accessory dwelling unit, the garage door opening shall be replaced with siding exterior wall coverings, or residential windows and doors, to match the existing exterior garage walls covering and detailing.
6. **Grading.** No more than 250 cubic yards of grading (i.e., cut and/or fill under the main accessory dwelling unit building footprint and outside the main building footprint to accommodate the accessory dwelling unit) is proposed in the Hillside Design District or on lots in other parts of the City with a slope of 15% or greater.
67. **Height.** The construction of an accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed the following, whichever is greater:
 - a. Height of the primary residential unit;
 - b. ~~or the~~ Number of stories of the primary residential unit; or
 - c. 17 feet, whichever is greater.

This height limitation is not applicable to an accessory dwelling unit constructed above a garage, ~~however, in no event shall the resulting building exceed the~~

maximum height or number of stories allowed for a detached or attached accessory building in the zone.

- 78. *Front Yard Location.*** The construction of a new detached accessory dwelling unit located in the front yard shall be subject to all of the following:
- a. The new accessory dwelling unit must be located a minimum of 20 feet back from all front lot lines s or meet the minimum front setback for the zone in which the lot is located, whichever is greater.
 - b. Unless constructed over a garage, the new unit shall be:
 - i. No more than one-story and less than 17 feet in height; and
 - ii. Screened from the street by topography, location, or landscape, in a manner designed to blend into the surrounding architecture or landscape, so as to minimize visibility of the accessory dwelling unit to the casual observer as viewed from the street.
- 89. *Design Style.*** New detached or attached accessory dwelling units shall be compatible with the design of the primary residential unit regarding style, fenestration, materials, colors, and details if the accessory dwelling unit meets any of the following:
- a. Attached to, or if any portion of the accessory dwelling unit is located within 20 feet of, the primary residential unit;
 - b. Located in the Hillside Design District and 20% or greater average slope;
 - c. Two or more stories tall, or 17 feet or taller in building height;
 - d. Located on a site on which there is a historical resource as follows:
 - i. Listed on the National Register of Historic Places or the California Register of Historic ResourcesPlaces, or
 - ii. designated as a City of Santa Barbara Landmark or Structure of Merit, or
 - iii. Located in a designated historic district. ;or
 - e. Located in the front yard.
- 910. *Privacy Standards.*** The construction of an accessory dwelling unit where any portion of the proposed construction is either: two or more stories tall, ; or 17 feet or taller in building height, shall comply with the following:
- a. Upper story unenclosed landings, decks, and balconies greater than 20 square feet, that face or overlook the adjoining property, shall be located a minimum of 15 feet from the interior lot lines.
 - b. Upper story unenclosed landings, decks and balconies, that do not face or overlook the adjoining property due to orientation or topography, may be located at the minimum interior setback line if an architectural screening element such as enclosing walls, trellises, awnings or perimeter planters

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

with a five-foot minimum height is incorporated into the unenclosed landing, deck or balcony.

- c. Upper story windows that face or overlook the adjoining property, located within 15 feet of the interior lot lines, shall be installed a minimum of 42 inches above finish floor.

~~The portions of a building or site considered to be the accessory dwelling unit shall include all the contiguous interior livable floor area of the accessory dwelling unit, as well as any exterior alterations directly attached to, and related to, the livable floor area of the accessory dwelling unit.~~

11. Exceptions. Discretionary applications for design review may be requested in the following circumstances:

- a. An applicant may propose an accessory dwelling unit that does not meet these design criteria subject to approval by the Single Family Design Board, Architectural Board of Review, or Historic Landmarks Commission, as appropriate.
- b. Discretionary design review may be required for any exterior alterations to the project site or ~~primary main buildings residential unit~~ that are not an integral part of the accessory dwelling unit, but are proposed in conjunction with the accessory dwelling unit, if required pursuant to Chapter 22.22, 22.68, or 22.69 of this code.

U. Protection for Historic Resources. No accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted if the proposal would cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource listed on the National Register of Historic Places or the California Register of Historical ~~Resources~~ Places, designated as a City of Santa Barbara Landmark or Structure of Merit or located in a designated historic district. The Community Development Director shall make this determination by reviewing the proposal for compliance with appropriate Secretary of Interior's *Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring and Reconstructing Historic Buildings*.

J. Parking Standards. ~~No automobile parking spaces are required for accessory dwelling units or junior accessory dwelling units. The required parking for the existing residential units on site may be reduced or replaced as follows to construct an accessory dwelling unit: Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 30.175, Parking Regulations, automobile parking for lots developed with accessory dwelling units or junior accessory dwelling units shall be provided as follows:~~

~~1. **Required Parking for the Primary Residential Unit.** Automobile parking for the primary residential unit shall be provided in compliance with Chapter 30.175, Parking Regulations, except as provided below.~~

~~1. **No Replacement Parking Required.** a. *Special Procedures for Conversion or Demolition of Existing Covered Parking to an Accessory Dwelling Unit.* When an~~

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

~~existing~~ garage, carport, or other covered parking structure is converted to an accessory dwelling unit or demolished in ~~conjunction with the construction of order to construct~~ an accessory dwelling unit, ~~those off-street parking spaces for the existing residential unit are not required to be replaced. the required covered parking spaces that are displaced by the conversion or demolition shall be replaced on the same lot as the primary residential unit in order to satisfy the automobile parking requirement of the primary residential unit.~~

2. **Optional Parking Standards.** ~~The~~ If optional new or replacement parking spaces are proposed ~~for either the primary residential unit or the accessory dwelling unit, those spaces~~ may be ~~provided as~~ covered, uncovered, in a mechanical lift, or in a tandem configuration pursuant to ~~f. below~~. The replacement spaces shall meet all of the following:

- ~~i.a.~~ Covered parking shall meet the development standards applicable to a ~~single the primary~~ residential unit within the zone in which the lot is located.
- ~~ii.b.~~ All parking spaces must meet the minimum dimensions and development standards consistent with the City ~~Standard for Parking Design Parking Access & Design Standards~~ and Section 30.175.090 Parking Area Design and Development Standards.
- ~~iii.c.~~ In order to maintain visibility for adjacent driveways and intersections, uncovered parking spaces shall comply with Section 30.140.230, Visibility at Driveways and Intersections.
- ~~iv.d.~~ **Required Replacement** uncovered parking spaces may be allowed in a front or interior setback, provided ~~the all~~ uncovered parking spaces ~~is are~~ contained within the area of an existing paved driveway and no increase to paved areas occurs in the setbacks.
- ~~e.~~ ~~New uncovered parking spaces, that are not replacement parking spaces as described above, may be located three feet from any interior lot line, provided a minimum of three feet in width of planting area is provided for the length of the paved parking area along the interior lot line.~~
- ~~f.~~ **Tandem parking configuration shall meet all the following:**
 - ~~i.~~ ~~No more than two automobiles shall be placed one behind the other.~~
 - ~~ii.~~ ~~Both automobile parking spaces parked in tandem shall be assigned to the same residential unit. Tandem parking shall not create any traffic safety issues.~~
 - ~~iii.~~ ~~Vertical or stackable tandem parking, provided by means of mechanical lifts, is subject to approval by the Public Works Director. Mechanical lifts shall be fully enclosed within a structure and shall require a recorded maintenance agreement, pursuant to Chapter 30.260, Recorded Agreements.~~

- iv. Tandem parking in multi-unit and commercial zones is subject to approval by the Public Works Director. Tandem Parking shall not create traffic safety issues.

~~VU. **High Fire Hazard Areas Standards.** All accessory dwelling units or junior accessory dwelling units located in any Fire Hazard Area as defined in the City's Community Wildfire Protection Plan. A junior accessory dwelling unit is permitted in any high fire hazard area. No accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted on a lot located within the Extreme Foothill High Fire Hazard Areas as defined in the City's Wildland Fire Plan, or as may be subsequently retitled in the future as a "High" or "Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone" as defined in the Community Wildfire Protection Plan adopted by City Council. No accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted on a lot located within the Foothill High Fire Hazard Areas as defined in the City's Wildland Fire Plan unless all the following requirements are met shall comply with the following standards as applicable to new construction or parking:~~

1. **No Tandem Parking.** No parking space shall be developed in a tandem configuration.
2. **High Fire Construction.** The accessory dwelling unit shall be designed to meet high fire construction standards adopted or enforced by the City, as determined by the Chief Building Official or the Fire Code Official.
3. **No Variance or Modification.** No variance or modification to any Fire Code requirements or high fire construction standards shall be permitted.
4. **Defensible Space.** The site must meet defensible space requirements, pursuant to Chapter 8.04 of this code, prior to occupancy and those requirements must be maintained.
5. **Parking.** One covered or uncovered automobile parking space per unit or bedroom, whichever is less, meeting all of the same parking standards required for the primary residential unit as described in subsection J. R-1, Parking Standards, shall be required for an accessory dwelling unit.
 - a. *Parking Exceptions for Certain Accessory Dwelling Units.* Automobile parking is not required for an accessory dwelling unit in any of the following instances:
 - i. The accessory dwelling unit is located within a walking distance of one-half mile of a public transit stop, such as a bus stop or train station.
 - ii. The accessory dwelling unit is located within an architecturally and historically significant historic district. For purposes of this provision, El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District, Brinkerhoff Avenue Landmark District, Riviera Campus Historic District, and the El Encanto Hotel Historic District, constitute architecturally and historically significant historic districts within the City and any

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

district hereafter created deemed to be architecturally and historically significant.

- iii. The accessory dwelling unit is contained entirely within the permitted floor area of the existing primary residential unit or an existing accessory building.
- iv. When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the occupant(s) of the accessory dwelling unit.
- v. When there is a “carshare vehicle” as defined in Chapter 10.73 of this code, located within a walking distance of 500 feet of the accessory dwelling unit.

V. Development Standards for Special Accessory Dwelling Units.

- 1. *Development Standards Generally.* The development standards listed in this section apply to specific types of small accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units with certain size, height, and setback standards that, if followed, allow for an accessory dwelling unit to be permitted on lots in a Fire Hazard Area, or more than one accessory dwelling unit on a lot, and allows additional reductions and exceptions to development standards for open yard and maximum floor area. Applications utilizing the special standards described in this Section may not utilize the less restrictive configuration, size, and height standards allowed under another section to achieve a larger unit or more than one unit.
 - a. Any reductions and exceptions in this section are for the express purpose of promoting the development and maintenance of a special accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit on the lot. If for any reason the special accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit is no longer maintained on the lot, the lot shall be brought into compliance with all of the requirements for the remaining residential development, or with the legal nonconforming condition of the lot prior to the development of the accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit.
 - b. Except as otherwise specified in this section, projects developed in accordance with this Chapter shall otherwise comply with the development standards applicable to the housing type and base zone in which the lot is located.
 - c. One primary residential unit shall be designated on a lot on which an accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit is permitted. In the case when multiple residential units are existing on a lot, there shall be only one primary residential unit.

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE

2. **Configuration – Single Unit Lots.** A lot developed with only one existing or proposed single-unit residence, may permit one of the following types of special accessory dwelling units:
- a. *Converted Portion of Main Building.* Only one accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit contained entirely within the existing, legally permitted, fully enclosed livable floor area of the existing or proposed primary residential unit; or
 - b. *Converted Accessory Building.* Only one accessory dwelling unit contained entirely within the existing, legally permitted, fully enclosed floor area of a garage or other accessory building on the same lot as the primary residential unit, plus one 150-square-foot conforming first floor addition, if the expansion is limited to accommodating ingress and egress; or
 - c. *One Unit – New Construction.* One newly constructed accessory dwelling unit, detached from any other main or accessory building; or
 - d. *Two Units – Combination.* One junior accessory dwelling unit contained entirely within the existing, legally permitted, fully enclosed livable floor area of the existing or proposed primary residential unit, plus one newly constructed accessory dwelling unit, detached from any other main or accessory building.
3. **Configuration – Two-Unit or Multi-Unit Lots.** A lot developed with two or more existing residential units, may permit one of the following types of special accessory dwelling units:
- a. *Converted Non-Livable Space.* At least one accessory dwelling unit, and up to 25 percent of the existing number of residential units on a lot, may be converted on a lot if contained entirely within portions of existing, legally permitted, fully enclosed floor area of a residential structure that is not used as livable space, including but not limited to storage rooms, boiler rooms, passageways, attics, basements, or garages; or
 - b. *Two Units – New Construction.* No more than two newly constructed accessory dwelling units, detached from the main or accessory building.
4. **Maximum Floor Area**
- a. *Detached Accessory Dwelling Unit.* The maximum floor area of any detached, new construction, special accessory dwelling unit approved pursuant to this subsection is 800 square feet.
 - b. *Converted Accessory Dwelling Unit.* An accessory dwelling unit that is incorporated entirely within portions of existing floor area, approved pursuant to this subsection, is not limited in size.
 - c. *Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit.* The maximum floor area of a junior accessory dwelling unit shall not exceed 500 square feet.

5. *Maximum Height – Detached Accessory Dwelling Unit.* The maximum building height of a detached, new construction, special accessory dwelling unit approved pursuant to this subsection is 16 feet.
6. *Exempt from Other Size Limitations.* A special accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit approved pursuant to this subsection is exempt from any other size limitation in this Title.
7. *Exempt from Open Yard.* No open yard is required for a special accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit approved pursuant to this section. Open yard for any existing residential units on a lot may be reduced or eliminated entirely in order to permit a special accessory dwelling unit meeting all the standards and criteria in this subsection.

~~W. — **Special Procedures for Accessory Dwelling Units Constructed Entirely Within Existing Structures.** The City shall ministerially approve an application for a building permit for an accessory dwelling unit if all of the following requirements are satisfied:~~

- ~~1. — The lot is located within any zone that allows single-unit residential as an allowed use.~~
- ~~2. — The construction will result in no more than one primary residential unit and one accessory dwelling unit on the lot.~~
- ~~3. — The proposed accessory dwelling unit will be contained entirely within the permitted floor area of the existing primary residential unit, or an existing accessory building on the same lot as the primary residential unit.~~
- ~~4. — The proposed accessory dwelling unit meets all of the configuration standards provided in subsection H, Configuration, of this section.~~
- ~~5. — When a garage is converted to an accessory dwelling unit or demolished in conjunction with the construction of an accessory dwelling unit, the required covered parking spaces that were displaced shall comply with the same parking requirements described in subsection R.1, Required Parking for the primary residential unit.~~
- ~~6. — When a garage is converted to an accessory dwelling unit, the garage door opening shall be replaced with siding, or residential windows and doors, to match the existing garage walls and detailing.~~
- ~~7. — State and local building codes that apply to detached dwellings, including provisions for fire safety pursuant to subsection V, High Fire Hazard Areas, shall apply.~~
- ~~8. — Accessory dwelling units constructed pursuant to this subsection shall not be required to provide fire sprinklers if they are not required for the primary residential unit.~~
- ~~9. — An accessory dwelling unit constructed pursuant to this subsection shall require a building permit. Before obtaining a building permit, the property owner shall execute an agreement, pursuant to Chapter 30.260, Recorded Agreements, containing a reference to the deed under which the property was acquired by the present owner and stating that~~

~~the accessory dwelling unit meets all the owner occupancy and rental requirements provided in subsections F, Sale and Rental Terms, and G, Owner Occupancy.~~

~~X.~~ W. **Building Permit Required.** All accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units shall comply with applicable state and local building codes and shall require approval of a building permit. Applications shall be processed pursuant to Chapter 30.205, Common Procedures, and the specific requirements of this section. The City shall ministerially approve or disapprove an complete building permit application ~~for a building permit~~ for an accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit in compliance with time periods established by State law. ~~provisions of this section within 120 days of receiving a complete application.~~

1. ~~1.~~ *Combined Permits.* An accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit permit shall not be combined with a permit for other proposed construction on the site unrelated to the accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit. If a permit application for an accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit is submitted at the same time as a permit application for a new single-unit dwelling, review of the permit for the accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit application shall be delayed until the permit for the single-unit dwelling has been approved.

12. ~~12.~~ *Modifications and Minor Zoning Exceptions for Accessory Dwelling Units or Junior Accessory Dwelling Units.* An accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit that is not in compliance with the development standards of this section may be granted a modification or minor zoning exception if all the required findings can be met, pursuant to the procedures outlined in Chapter 30.250, Modifications, or Chapter 30.245 Minor Zoning Exceptions.

23. ~~23.~~ *Posted Sign.* Within five calendar days after submitting an initial building permit application to the City, the property owner shall install a public notice in the form of a posted sign on the property in a manner deemed acceptable by the Community Development Director. The sign shall remain posted until a building permit is issued, or the application expires or is withdrawn. At the time of application submittal, the applicant shall sign an affidavit stating that he or she will post the required sign per this subsection. The validity of the permit shall not be affected by the failure of any property owner, resident, or neighborhood or community organization to receive this notice.

¥X. ~~X.~~ **Recorded Agreement.** Before obtaining a building permit for an accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit, the property owner shall execute an agreement, pursuant to Chapter 30.260, Recorded Agreements, containing a reference to the deed under which the property was acquired by the present owner which outlines the requirements regarding the sale, rental, and owner occupancy of lots developed with accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units as specified in subsections F and G of this section.

ZY. **Residential Density.** An accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit is a residential use that is consistent with the existing General Plan designations and zoning for lots within the allowable residential zones. Any accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit permitted pursuant to this section does not exceed the allowable density for the lot upon which the accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit is located. (Ord. 5834, 2018)

SECTION 2. Section 30.295.020 of Chapter 30.295 of Title 30 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended to read as follows:

30.295.020 Residential Use Classifications.

A. Residential Housing Types.

1. **Single-Unit Residential.** One **primary** residential unit and up to one Accessory Dwelling Unit **or one Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit** located on a single lot. This classification includes individual mobilehomes and manufactured housing units installed on a foundation system pursuant to Section 18551 of the California Health and Safety Code and meeting the standards of Section 30.185.270, Mobilehomes, Recreational Vehicles and Modular Units, Individual Use.
2. **Two-Unit Residential.** No more than two residential units **and may include one or more Accessory Dwelling Units** located on a single lot. The residential units may be located in a single building that contains two residential units (also known as a duplex) or in two detached buildings.
3. **Multi-Unit Residential.** Three or more attached or detached residential units **and may include one or more Accessory Dwelling Units** on a single lot. Types of multi-unit residential include townhouses, multiple detached residential units (e.g. bungalow court), and multi-story apartment buildings.

B. Special Residential Unit Types.

1. **Accessory Dwelling Unit.** An attached or a detached residential unit **which that** provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons **and is located on a lot with a proposed or existing primary residential unit**. It shall include permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel as the **single primary** residential unit is **or will be** situated. An accessory dwelling unit also includes the following:
 - a. An efficiency unit, as defined in Section 17958.1 of Health and Safety Code.
 - b. A manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the Health and Safety Code.
6. **Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit.** **A unit that is no more than 500 square feet in size and contained entirely within the structure of an existing or proposed single-unit residential housing type. A junior accessory dwelling unit includes its own**

separate sanitation facilities, or shares sanitation facilities with the existing or proposed single residential unit and includes an efficiency kitchen.

SECTION 3. Severability and Interpretation.

A. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any persons or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application and, to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable.

B. Interpretation. This Ordinance shall be construed to confer upon the City the maximum power and authority allowed by state and federal law. In the event state or federal law is found to conflict with and preempt any provision of this Ordinance, or in the event state or federal law changes to conflict with and preempt any provision of this Ordinance, the remaining and non-conflicting provisions of this Ordinance shall be interpreted and construed to give maximum effect to the remaining and non-conflicting provisions so as to effectuate to the greatest extent possible the purposes and restrictions expressed herein.

SECTION 4. CEQA

Under California Public Resources Code Section 21080.17, the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to the adoption of an ordinance by a city or county implementing the provisions of Section 65852.2 and 65852.22 of the Government Code, which is the State Accessory Dwelling Unit law.

SECTION 5. Effect on Projects in the Permit Process

Applications for Accessory Dwelling Units subject to the City's Interim Urgency Ordinance No. 5927, extended by Ordinance No. 5930, that were received on or after January 1, 2017 but before the effective date of City Council adoption may continue to be processed in accordance with Government Code 65852.2 provided that a building permit is issued within 60 days after the effective date of the ordinance, or may elect to be processed in accordance with the proposed Title 30 ordinance amendments. All applications for Accessory Dwelling Units submitted on or after the effective date of City Council adoption, and any Accessory Dwelling Unit applications which have not yet received a building permit by the deadlines described above, shall be subject to the proposed Title 30 ordinance amendments.

SECTION 6. Interim Urgency Ordinance No. 5930

Interim Urgency Ordinance No. 5930 shall automatically terminate and have no further force or effect upon the effective date of this ordinance.

ATTACHMENT 1
STAFF DRAFT 09/29/20
SHOWING CHANGES FROM CURRENT CODE